
  
 

APOPKA CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
May 02, 2018 1:30 PM 

APOPKA CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

Agendas are subject to amendment through 

5:00pm on the day prior to City Council Meetings 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
INVOCATION - Pastor Michael Williams of First Pentecostal Church of Apopka 
PLEDGE 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. City Council regular meeting April 4, 2018. 
2. City Council regular meeting April 18, 2018. 

 
AGENDA REVIEW 

PUBLIC COMMENT; STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Employee Recognition: 
 Five Year Service Award – Terrence “Terry” Griffin – Public Services/Cemetery 
 Five Year Service Award – Erin Arnold – Community Development 
 Ten Year Service Award – Ryan McNeely – Public Services/Utility Construction 
 Ten Year Service Award – Brian Liszcz – Recreation/NWRF Grounds 
 Ten Year Service Award – David Odom – Public Services/Grounds 
 Fifteen Year Service Award – Ryan Leonard – Public Services/Utility Construction 
 Twenty Year Service Award – Kenneth “Kenny” Kaiser – Police/Field Services (rescheduled from April meeting) 
 Twenty-five Year Service Award – Robert “Rob” Hippler – IT/Computer Services 

 
Public Comment Period:  
The Public Comment Period is for City-related issues that may or may not be on today’s Agenda. If you are here for a matter that 
requires a public hearing, please wait for that item to come up on the agenda. If you wish to address the Council, you must fill out an 
Intent to Speak form and provide it to the City Clerk prior to the start of the meeting. If you wish to speak during the Public Comment 
Period, please fill out a green-colored Intent-to-Speak form. If you wish to speak on a matter that requires a public hearing, please fill 
out a white-colored Intent-to-Speak form. Speaker forms may be completed up to 48 hours in advance of the Council meeting. Each 
speaker  will  have  four minutes to  give  remarks,  regardless  of  the  number  of  items  addressed.  Please refer to Resolution No. 
2016-16 for further information regarding our Public Participation Policy & Procedures for addressing the City Council. 
 
CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Accept and update signatories with Florida Community Bank.  
2. Authorize staff to negotiate rates and award two surveying and mapping continuing service contracts. 

 
BUSINESS (Action Item) 

1. Final Development Plan/Plat – Vistas at Waters Edge – Quasi-Judicial                                                   Bobby Howell 
Project:  M/I Homes of Orlando, LLC  
Location:  South of Hooper Farms Road, west and north of Binion Road, and west of Harmon Road 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION (Action Item) 

1. Ordinance No. 2617 – Second Reading - Comp Plan Amendment – Large Scale – Legislative   David Moon 
Project: Laura Murphy – Location: 359 West Lester Road 
 

2. Ordinance No. 2644 – First Reading - Change of Zoning – Quasi-Judicial     Bobby Howell 
Project:  Spirit SPE Portfolio CA C-Stores, LLC – Location: 1305 West Orange Blossom Trail  
 

3. Resolution 2018-07 for the DOT Railroad Reimbursement Agreement for S. Highland Ave. Jay Davoll 
 
 

1



  
 

CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

MEETINGS AND UPCOMING EVENTS 

DATE TIME EVENT 

May 3, 2018 5:30pm – 9:00pm Food Truck Round Up 

May 8, 2018 5:30pm –  Planning Commission Meeting 

May 14, 2018 6:30pm –  CONA Meeting – UCF Apopka Business Incubator  

May 15, 2018 6:00pm –  Code Enforcement Hearing 

May 16, 2018 7:00pm –  City Council Meeting 

May 28, 2018 - Memorial Day - City Offices Closed  

May 28, 2018 10:00am – Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board Meeting: Winter Garden 

June 6, 2018 1:30pm –  City Council Meeting 

June 7, 2018 5:30pm – Food Truck Round Up 

June 11, 2018 6:30pm –  CONA Meeting – UCF Apopka Business Incubator 

June 12, 2018  5:30pm – 7:30pm Planning Commission Meeting 

June 20, 2018  7:00pm –  City Council Meeting 

June 25, 2018 10:00am – Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board Meeting: Winter Garden 

 
Individuals with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk at least two (2) working days in 
advance of the meeting date and time at (407) 703-1704.  F.S. 286.0105 If a person decides to appeal any decision or recommendation made by 
Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he will need record of the proceedings, and that for such purposes he may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
 
Any opening invocation that is offered before the official start of the Council meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private person, to and for the 
benefit of the Council.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the City Council or 
the city staff, and the City is not allowed by law to endorse the religious or non-religious beliefs or views of such speaker.  Persons in attendance at the 
City Council meeting are invited to stand during the opening ceremony. However, such invitation shall not be construed as a demand, order, or any other 
type of command.  No person in attendance at the meeting shall be required to participate in any opening invocation that is offered or to participate in the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  You may remain seated within the City Council Chambers or exit the City Council Chambers and return upon completion of the 
opening invocation and/or Pledge of Allegiance if you do not wish to participate in or witness the opening invocation and/or the recitation of the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
  

2



CITY OF APOPKA 

 

Minutes of the regular City Council meeting held on April 4, 2018, at 1:30 p.m., in the City 

of Apopka Council Chambers. 
 

PRESENT:   Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Billie Dean  

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

Commissioner Kyle Becker  

Commissioner Doug Bankson 

City Attorney Patrick Brackins 

City Administrator Glenn Irby 

 

PRESS PRESENT:  John Perry - The Apopka Chief 

    Reggie Connell, The Apopka Voice 

 

INVOCATION: - Mayor Kilsheimer introduced Pastor Alexander Smith of New Hope 

Missionary Baptist Church who gave the invocation. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Kilsheimer said on this day, 50 years ago, Dr. Martin 

Luther King, Jr. was assassinated in Memphis, Tennessee, ending a life in service to peacefully 

bring about racial and economic change in America. Dr. King advocated civil disobedience and 

nonviolent resistance to segregation.  He became the voice of the Civil Rights Movement and 

the youngest recipient at the time to win the Nobel Peace Prize. He asked everyone to honor Dr. 

King’s legacy as an enduring call to action in service as he led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. City Council workshop meeting January 26, 2018. 

2. City Council regular meeting February 21, 2018 

3. City Council regular meeting March 07, 2018  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson and seconded by Commissioner Becker to approve 

the minutes of January 26, 2018, February 21, 2019, and March 7, 2018, as presented. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, 

Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

AGENDA REVIEW: Commissioner Velazquez pointed out the staff report should be corrected 

for the SunTrust address to 2642.  

  

PUBLIC COMMENT; STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Employee Recognition: 

 Five Year Service Award – Keith Tincher – Public Services/Cemetery. Keith was not 

present and will be presented his award at another time. 

 Five Year Service Award – Jason Brown – Public Services/Waste Water Plant. Jason was 

not present and will be presented his award at another time. 

 Ten Year Service Award – Andrew “Drew” Parkinson – Police/Support Services. The 

Commissioners joined Mayor Kilsheimer in congratulating Drew on his years of service. 

3



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on April 4, 2018 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 2 

 

 

Public Comment: 

Ray Shackelford inquired if the City could take another look at Consent Agenda Item No. 3 and 

asked what the total cost was for Consent Agenda Item No. 4 for final extension at $38 per cubic 

yard.  

 

Jay Davoll, Public Services Director advised Item No. 3 was the annual resurfacing program. He 

said the program has for many years had $600,000 budgeted for the program and they have come 

in less, and the final restriping will utilize the remaining of the budget. He advised the cost is on 

an estimated amount with a 10% contingency. He stated the bio-solids is dependent upon how the 

plant is functioning at the time.  

 

CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Approve the emergency purchase of a replacement standby generator for the Bradshaw Road 

Lift Station #77.   

2. Approve the purchase of a bypass pump for the Forest Avenue Lift Station 17. 

3. Award a Street Resurfacing Project to Orlando Paving Company.  

4. Approve the final extension for wastewater residuals transport and disposal with Shelley’s 

Environmental Systems.   

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to approve 

four items on the Consent Agenda. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, 

and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker and Bankson voting aye. 

 

BUSINESS (Action Item) 

1. Final Development Plan – Self Help Credit Union - Project:  Self Help Credit Union c/o 

Randy Chambers – Located at 667 West Orange Blossom Trail 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer announced this was a quasi-judicial hearing. Witnesses were sworn in by 

the City Attorney. 

 

Jean Sanchez, Planner, said this was a request to approve the Self Help Credit Union Final 

Development Plan (FDP). The project is located east of Vick Road, south of Old Dixie 

Highway, and north of U.S. Highway 441.  She reviewed the current zoning and surrounding 

land-uses. She reviewed the landscape plan and advised there would be a 10 foot landscape 

buffer to the northern and southern boundaries of adjacent rights-of-ways and 5 foot wide 

buffers to the east and west of the site. She reviewed the proposed plans and advised the 

Planning Commissioner recommended approval at their March 13, 2018 meeting. DRC 

recommended approval.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTON by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson to 

approve the Final Development Plan for Self Help Credit Union, 667 West Orange 

Blossom Trail. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

4



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on April 4, 2018 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 3 

 

 

2. Final Development Plan/Plat – Zarabrooke Subdivision - Project: Zarabrooke, LLC, c/o Barry 

Kalmanson – Located at 829 Paradiso Court 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer announced this was a quasi-judicial hearing. Witnesses were sworn in by 

the City Attorney.  

 

Bobby Howell, Senior Planner, said the request is to approve the Final Development Plan and 

Plat for the Zarabrooke Subdivision which is located to the west of Vick Road near Apopka 

High School.  He reviewed the location on a vicinity map and pointed out surrounding land-

use. The property is zoned R-3 and has a future land use designation of residential low 

density. There are 14 proposed single family residential lots on 5.59 acres. The minimum 

typical lot width proposed is 70 feet with a minimum lot size of 9,808 square feet. Full access 

to the development is from Vick Road which will be signalized in the future. He advised a 

northbound left turn lane will be constructed leading into the development from Vick Road.  

There will be a 6 foot wall on the east boundary of the subject property with a subdivision 

entry sign and feature abutting Vick Road. Buffers will be consistent with the Land 

Development Code. He advised DRC and the Planning Commission recommend approval.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing. 

 

MOTON by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson to 

approve the Final Development Plan for Zarabrooke Subdivision, 829 Paradiso Court. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, 

Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION 

 

1. Ordinance No.  2635 – Second Reading - Comprehensive Plan Amendment – Small Scale – 

Project: Kenney Harry Charles McAllister - Located on the Northwest corner of North 

Hermit Smith Road, U.S. 441 intersection. The City Clerk read the title as follows: 
 

ORDINANCE 2635 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM “COUNTY” RURAL 

TO “CITY” COMMERCIAL FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 

GENERALLY LOCATED WEST OF HERMIT SMITH ROAD AND 

NORTH OF ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL, COMPRISING 0.04 ACRES, 

MORE OR LESS AND OWNED BY KENNEY HARRY CHARLES 

MCALLISTER; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING 

FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 

Mr. Martinez advised there have been no changes since the first reading. 

5



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on April 4, 2018 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 4 

 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to 

adopt Ordinance No. 2635. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

2. Ordinance No.  2636 – Second Reading - Change of Zoning – Project: Kenney Harry Charles 

McAllister - Located on the Northwest corner of North Hermit Smith Road, U.S. 441 

intersection. The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 
 

ORDINANCE 2636 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 
THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 AGRICULTURE TO “CITY” 
PLANNED UNIT DEVEOLOPMENT FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 
GENERALLY LOCATED WEST OF HERMIT SMITH ROAD AND 
NORTH OF ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL, COMPRISING 0.04 ACRES 
MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY KENNEY HARRY CHARLES 
MCALLISTER; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 
CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer announced this was a quasi-judicial hearing. Witnesses were sworn in by 

the City Attorney. 

 

Mr. Martinez advised there were no changes since the first hearing. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2636. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

3. Ordinance No. 2637 – Second Reading - Change of Zoning - PUD Master Plan/Preliminary 

Development Plan. Project: City of Apopka, James D. & Deborah M. Lyda, & Citizens Bank 

of Florida - Located on Johns Road, west of S.R. 451. The City Clerk read the title as 

follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2637 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM PUD(PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT), MIXED-

EC (MIXED EMPLOYMENT CENTER), AND I-1 (RESTRICTED 

INDUSTRIAL) TO PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT/RESIDENTIAL 

(PUD) FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED 

6



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on April 4, 2018 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 5 

 

SOUTH OF MARSHALL LAKE AND WEST OF SR 451, COMPRISING 

154.18 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY THE CITY OF 

APOPKA, JAMES D & DEBORAH M. LYDA, AND CITIZENS BANK OF 

FLORIDA; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY,CONFLICTS,AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

David Moon, Planning Manager, said this was the second reading of the ordinance. He 

advised City Council established four additional conditions placed on the Lake Marshal PUD 

Master Plan and these were included in the agenda packet. He reviewed the conditions as 

follows: 

1. The use of the watercraft shall be permitted only by the owners and occupants of 

direct lakefront lots. 

2. If any boat launch area is located within the common area, it shall be restricted by a 

separate locking gate that only lakefront owners will have access and only lakefront 

owners may use such access. 

3.  The retaining wall shall be acceptable as permitted per the master site plan PDP. 

4. The emergency access easement to be granted by Breckenridge HOA will be 

permitted only to the use of the City for emergency access and shall revert back to the 

property owners on either side of the access point should it ever cease to be used for 

emergency access. 

Mr. Moon advised these four conditions are incorporated into the ordinance being considered 

for second reading and adoption.  

 

In response to Commissioner’s Bankson inquiring about the dock, Matt Young, applicant, 

advised there would be railing on the dock and they can place signage at the entry of the 

dock. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. 

 

Nina Rowe said knowing only 17 homes will have access to the lake, will the applicant make 

that part of the HOA documents. 

 

Matt Young, applicant, responded in the affirmative. 

 

Michael Rowe said he, his neighbor and one other person were encroaching and utilizing 

property for their own personal benefit and there were agreements for them to purchase it 

from the developer. He inquired if there could be protections in the PUD for them when this 

sale happens. 

 

City Attorney Brackins said that would be an agreement between private parties and has no 

applicability here. Mayor Kilsheimer added that this being a private agreement, it is not the 

city’s role to intervene.  

 

7



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on April 4, 2018 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 6 

 

Mr. Rowe inquired if there was a way the city could have ownership of that property. 

 

City Attorney Brackins said the sell is already in process and the closing scheduled. Mr. Hitt 

advised the property was bid as a total and not sectioned off.  

Commissioner Bankson said he was glad there was an agreement that could be worked out 

for both parties and encouraged the developer to move ahead in good will.  

 

Carrie Wierciocn said her property was purchased from the Faircloths’ and expressed 

concern regarding the location of her well and septic.  

 

Luke Classon said the property was surveyed and the driveway and fence line do extend to 

the northeast corner, but the well and septic is on her property and not on the city owned 

property. He advised these were added to a separate tract and designed and parceled out as 

separate tracts. At the time the developer purchases the land from the city, they can agree to 

sell the area the driveway encroaches to them.  

 

Theresa Grubbs expressed concerns regarding the dock and the park and the regulation of 

noise levels and the number of people allowed in these areas. She stated the noise level of 

people in boats on the lake is very loud and she can hear them inside her home.  

 

Commissioner Bankson said there should be a capacity posted for the dock as part of the 

signage. 

 

In response to Mr. Rowe inquiring if the signage would be City or HOA, City Attorney 

Brackins advised it would be HOA, and can be enforced through the developer agreement.  

 

No one else wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to 

adopt Ordinance No. 2637, subject to the four conditions as specified. Motion carried 

unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, 

and Bankson voting aye. 

 

4. Ordinance No. 2639 – First Reading - Change of Zoning – Oak Pointe  - Project: Jason C. 

Revelle & Thompson Hills Estates, LLC - Located east of SR429, north of McCormick 

Road. The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2639 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 TO “CITY” PLANNED UNIT 

DEVELOPMENT (PUD)FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 

GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF MCCORMICK ROAD AND EAST 

OF STATE ROAD 429, SPECIFICALLY AT 1751 IRMALEE LANE, 

COMPRISING 0.96 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY JASON 

C. REVELLE; AND AMENDING ORDINANCE NUMBER 2584 TO 

INCORPORATE SAME CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY INTO THE 

8



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on April 4, 2018 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 7 

 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION THEREIN AND INCREASE THE MAXIMUM 

NUMBER OF TOWNHOMES THEREIN TO 120; PROVIDING FOR 

DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer announced this was a quasi-judicial hearing. Witnesses were sworn in by 

the City Attorney.  

 

Mr. Moon advised the applicant was not able to attend the first reading, but will be present 

for the second reading and adoption. He explained this was an amendment to the existing 

master plan with rezoning of the Revelle property. This changes the maximum number of 

townhomes to 120 once the property is acquired. The Planning Commission and DRC 

recommend approval.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2639 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, 

Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

  

5. Ordinance No. 2640 – First Reading – Annexation. Project:  Janine R. & Richard D. 

Edmondson - Located at 3904 Plymouth Sorrento Road.  The City Clerk read the title as 

follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2640 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY RICHARD DONALD EDMONDSON AND JANINE 
ROCHELLE EDMONDSON; LOCATED AT 3904 PLYMOUTH 
SORRENTO ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY 
CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Ms. Sanchez said this was annexation of a parcel approximately 1 acre in size located west of 

Plymouth Sorrento Road and southwest of Appy Lane. It abuts property within city limits on 

the east boundary. She advised DRC recommends approval.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Becker to 

approve Ordinance No. 2640   at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. 

9



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on April 4, 2018 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 8 

 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, 

Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

 

6. Ordinance No. 2641 – First Reading – Annexation. Project:  Lynn R. Fontaine - Located at 

4353 McDonald Gley Road. The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2641 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY LYNN R. FONTAINE; LOCATED AT 4353 MCDONALD 
GLEY; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Ms. Sanchez said this request was to annex a parcel approximately 5.2 acres in size located 

east of U.S. 441, south of Yothers Road, and west of Chandler Estate subdivision. This is 

adjacent to properties within city limits to the east and portions of the north and south 

boundaries. DRC recommends approval.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Dean, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to approve 

Ordinance No. 2641 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. Motion 

carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, 

Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

 

7. Ordinance No. 2642 – First Reading – Annexation. Project:  SunTrust Bank - Located at 920 

East Semoran Boulevard. The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2642 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY SUNTRUST BANK; LOCATED AT 920 EAST SEMORAN 
BOULEVARD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Ms. Sanchez said this request was to annex a parcel approximately 0.37 acres in size located 

south of S.R. 436, and east of Sheeler Avenue. It abuts properties within city limits and DRC 

recommends approval.  

10



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on April 4, 2018 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 9 

 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he 

closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

approve Ordinance No. 2642 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, 

Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

8. Ordinance No. 2643 – First Reading - Annexation – Right-of-Way.  

Project:  A – Orange County - King Street Right-of-Way 

Project:  B – Orange County – Peterson Road (east of SR 429) 

Project:  C – Orange County – Peterson Road (west of SR 429)  

The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2643 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 

ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 

TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 

PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY KNOWN AS KING STREET,  PETERSON 

ROAD (EAST), AND PETERSON ROAD (WEST), SITUATED AND 

BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, LOCATED GENERALLY 

SOUTH OF WEST ORANGE AVENUE AND EAST AND WEST OF SR 

429, AND COMPRISED OF APPROXIMATELY 5.306 ACRES; OWNED 

BY ORANGE COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS; 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Pam Richmond, Senior Planner, said in accordance with the JPA between Apopka and 

Orange County, these properties are presented today for annexation. The total roadway right-

of-way included in this annexation is 5.6 acres. DRC recommends approval.  

 

In response to Commissioner Bankson inquiring what the advantage of taking over these 

roads was, Mr. Hitt advised all of these roads were in conjunction with developments the 

City has been reviewing. He said without control of the road, it is difficult to plan for the 

industrial area there, and the residential parcel south of King Street.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing.  

Carrie Wierciocn said they own property off of King and Peterson and asked if this was 

going to change the property, and was only annexing the road. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer responded in the affirmative.  

 

No one else wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public hearing. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Becker to 

11



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on April 4, 2018 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 10 

 

approve Ordinance No. 2643 at First Reading and carry it over for a Second Reading. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, 

Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

9. Resolution 2018-04 Rolloff franchise agreement Container Rental. The City Clerk read the 

title as follows: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-04 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, 

FLORIDA, GRANTING A NON-EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE TO 

CONTAINER RENTAL COMPANY, TO PROVIDE “ROLL-OFF” 

CONTAINER COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL OF WASTE IN THE CITY 

OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, PURSUANT TO CITY OF APOPKA, CODE OF 

ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 66, ARTICLE III; PROVIDING FOR THE 

TERM OF YEARS FOR THE FRANCHISE; PROVIDING FOR 

FRANCHISE FEE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to approve 

Resolution No.2018.04. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

10. Resolution 2018-05 Rolloff franchise agreement Waste Pro USA, Inc. The City Clerk read 

the title as follows: 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-05 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, 

FLORIDA, GRANTING A NON-EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE TO WASTE 

PRO USA, INC., TO PROVIDE “ROLL-OFF” CONTAINER 

COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL OF WASTE IN THE CITY OF APOPKA, 

FLORIDA, PURSUANT TO CITY OF APOPKA, CODE OF 

ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 66, ARTICLE III; PROVIDING FOR THE 

TERM OF YEARS FOR THE FRANCHISE; PROVIDING FOR 

FRANCHISE FEE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to 

approve Resolution No. 218-05. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, 

and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

11. Resolution 2018-06 Rolloff franchise agreement Randy Suggs, Inc. The City Clerk read the 

title as follows: 

 

12



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on April 4, 2018 at 1:30 p.m.  

Page 11 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-06 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, 

FLORIDA, GRANTING A NON-EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE TO RANDY 

SUGGS, INC., TO PROVIDE “ROLL-OFF” CONTAINER COLLECTION 

AND DISPOSAL OF WASTE IN THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, 

PURSUANT TO CITY OF APOPKA, CODE OF ORDINANCES, 

CHAPTER 66, ARTICLE III; PROVIDING FOR THE TERM OF YEARS 

FOR THE FRANCHISE; PROVIDING FOR FRANCHISE FEE; 

PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Dean, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to 

approve Resolution No. 2018.06. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, 

and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 

Commissioner Becker said as we are going into budget season, he said traffic was getting heavy 

at Rock Springs Road and Welch Road with new businesses going in. He stated the City needs to 

work with Orange County and look into investing in median structure that inhibits the ability of 

turning left out of Publix onto Rock Springs Road. He asked staff to look into this and start this 

conversation with Orange County to drive this process. 

 

MAYOR’S REPORT   

Mayor Kilsheimer announced there was a Special Council meeting on April 11, 2018 at the 

Apopka Community Center on the New Errol project. He said his final City Council meeting 

will be on April 18, 2018. 

 

ADJOURNMENT – There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 2:39 p.m. 

 

 

        __________________________ 

ATTEST:       Bryan Nelson, Mayor 

 
 

___________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

13



CITY OF APOPKA 

 

Minutes of the regular City Council meeting held on April 18, 2018, at 7:00 p.m., in the 

City of Apopka Council Chambers. 

 

PRESENT:   Mayor Joe Kilsheimer 

Commissioner Billie Dean  

Commissioner Diane Velazquez 

Commissioner Kyle Becker  

Commissioner Doug Bankson 

City Attorney Cliff Shepard 

City Administrator Glenn Irby 

PRESS PRESENT:  John Perry - The Apopka Chief 

    Teresa Sargeant – The Apopka Chief 

    Reggie Connell, The Apopka Voice 

INVOCATION: - Mayor Kilsheimer introduced Pastor James Hicks, Center of Faith Church, 

who gave the invocation. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Kilsheimer said on this date in 1775, Paul Revere and 

William Dawes set off on their historic ride to warn patriot leaders in Concord, New Hampshire 

that British troops had been dispatched to seize their arms. They rode through the countryside to 

Boston and rallied the minutemen to take up arms and fight against the British with the cry “The 

British are coming.” Part of the long rehearsed plan was to place lanterns in the steeple of 

Boston’s Old North Church to alert the minutemen of British troop movement, “One if by land, 

two if by sea.”  On that evening, Paul Revere placed two lanterns in the steeple and the militia 

met the British troops at Concord at about 5:00 a.m. on April 19. In that confrontation, the “shot 

heard around the world” was fired and the brief Battle of Lexington began the American 

Revolution. He asked everyone to reflect upon the vision, vigilance and gallantry of our 

American Patriots as he led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
1. City Council regular meeting March 21, 2018.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to approve 

the minutes of March 21, 2018. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioner Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

AGENDA REVIEW – Glenn Irby, City Administrator advised there were no changes.  

 

PUBLIC COMMENT; STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
Presentations: 

1. Presentation of Congressional Record to Vice Mayor Billie Dean on behalf of 

Congresswoman Val Deming’s. 

 

14



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on April  18, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 2 
 

Sonja White, District Director, and Erin Waldron, Community & Economic Development 

Director, were here to represent Congresswoman Val Demings who was unable to be here 

tonight. Ms. White read a Congressional Record honoring Vice Mayor Billie Dean. She 

presented it to Vice Mayor Billie Dean who is retiring after serving the City of Apopka for over 

20 years.  

  . 

2. Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) from Moore Stephens Lovelace CPA's 

and Advisors.   

Bill Blend, Moore Stephens Lovelace, said he and Eduardo Castaneda were here to present the 

CAFR for September 30, 2017. He thanked staff, stating it was particularly challenging this year 

with the changeover in staff. He advised they are required by audit standards to communicate to 

the City Council their responsibility to do the audit, perform it accordance with audit standards, 

government audit standards, as well as the rules of the auditor general, talk about the scope of the 

audit, and significant findings. He said they did not encounter any significant difficulties in the 

audit. Management provided the appropriate management representation letter. The independent 

auditors report is on page one of the CAFR and this is an unmodified report and stated the 

financial information presented in this document has been audited and fairly presented, which is 

the highest level of assurance the City can receive. He advised a state single audit was required 

this year and this was performed with no violations being found with grant documents. He 

advised the City’s investment policy is in compliance with the state statute. The independent 

auditor’s management letter is required by the auditor’s general office and in this letter they do 

have a prior year finding related to employee turnover and this finding was not fully resolved this 

year. One additional finding is related to utility billing regarding reconciliation issues which they 

anticipate this finding being resolved. Mr. Blend reviewed the General Fund and pointed out 

there were $9.9 million in unassigned fund balance that approximates 26.6% of the expenditures 

for the year. The CAFR is on file in the Clerk’s office and Finance Department. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Dean, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson to accept the 

2017 CAFR. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners 

Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT – No one spoke. 

 

CONSENT (Action Item) 
1. Ratify the certificate of the official runoff election results. 

2. Authorize the disposal of surplus equipment/property. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to 

approve two items on the Consent Agenda. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor 

Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

BUSINESS  

1. Award a bid for fuel to Petroleum Traders Corporation. 

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to award 

the bid for fuel to Petroleum Traders Corporation. Motion carried unanimously with 

Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioner Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye.  

 

15



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on April  18, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 3 
 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION 
1. Ordinance No. 2639 – Second Reading - Change of Zoning – Oak Pointe   

Project:  Jason C. Revelle & Thompson Hills Estates, LLC   

Located east of Ocoee-Apopka Road, north of McCormick Road.  The City Clerk read 

the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2639 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 TO “CITY” PLANNED UNIT 

DEVELOPMENT (PUD)FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY 

GENERALLY LOCATED NORTH OF MCCORMICK ROAD AND EAST 

OF STATE ROAD 429, SPECIFICALLY AT 1751 IRMALEE LANE, 

COMPRISING 0.96 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY JASON 

C. REVELLE; AND AMENDING ORDINANCE NUMBER 2584 TO 

INCORPORATE SAME CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY INTO THE 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION THEREIN AND INCREASE THE MAXIMUM 

NUMBER OF TOWNHOMES THEREIN TO 120; PROVIDING FOR 

DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mr. Moon advised there have been no changes since the first reading. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner, and seconded by Commissioner, to adopt Ordinance No. 

2639. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, 

Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

2. Development Agreement – Oak Pointe – Project: Thompson Hills Estates, LLC - Located 

east of Ocoee-Apopka Road, north of McCormick Road 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer announced this was a quasi-judicial hearing. Witnesses were sworn in by the 

clerk. 

 

Mr. Moon reviewed the Development Agreement for Oak Pointe implementing the onsite and 

offsite improvements and amenities within the Oak Pointe PUD that Council just approved 

through the previous ordinance. He reviewed the land area on a map stating this agreement 

covers a land area larger than the Oak Pointe PUD. All of the property is owned by Thompson 

Hill Estates. He reviewed the improvements covered by the Development Agreement including 

the future road extension. A copy of the agreement is on file in the Clerk’s office.  

 

Commissioner Becker inquired if there was assignment of who will construct and pay for the 

spine road.  Mr. Moon said it has the option of either the City or the Developer to construct this 

16



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on April  18, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 4 
 

road. He advised the City was not obligated to construct the road, but has the opportunity to 

initiate the construction for emergency purposes.  

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Becker, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to approve 

the Development Agreement for Oak Pointe. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor 

Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

3. Ordinance No. 2640 – Second Reading – Annexation. Project:  Janine R. & Richard D. 

Edmondson - Located at 3904 Plymouth Sorrento Road.  The City Clerk read the title as 

follows: 
ORDINANCE NO. 2640 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY RICHARD DONALD EDMONDSON AND JANINE 
ROCHELLE EDMONDSON; LOCATED AT 3904 PLYMOUTH 
SORRENTO ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY 
CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mr. Hitt advised there have been no changes since the first reading. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2640. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

4. Ordinance No. 2641 – Second Reading – Annexation. Project:  Lynn R. Fontaine - 

Located at 4353 McDonald Gley Road. The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2641 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY LYNN R. FONTAINE; LOCATED AT 4353 MCDONALD 
GLEY; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Mr. Hitt advised there have been no changes since the first reading. 

 

17



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on April  18, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 5 
 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Becker, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2641. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

5. Ordinance No. 2642 – Second Reading – Annexation  

Project:  SunTrust Bank - Located at 920 East Semoran Boulevard. The City Clerk rea d 

the title as follows: 
ORDINANCE NO. 2642 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 
ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 
TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 
LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
OWNED BY SUNTRUST BANK; LOCATED AT 920 EAST SEMORAN 
BOULEVARD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Mr. Hitt advised there have been no changes since the first reading. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he closed 

the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Dean, and seconded by Commissioner Bankson, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2642. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

 

6. Ordinance No. 2643 – Second Reading - Annexation – Right-of-Way  

Project:  A – Orange County - King Street Right-of-Way 

Project:  B – Orange County – Peterson Road (east of SR 429) 

Project:  C – Orange County – Peterson Road (west of SR 429)   

The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2643 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO EXTEND 

ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX PURSUANT 

TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171.044 THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED 

PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY KNOWN AS KING STREET,  PETERSON 

ROAD (EAST), AND PETERSON ROAD (WEST), SITUATED AND 

BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, LOCATED GENERALLY 

SOUTH OF WEST ORANGE AVENUE AND EAST AND WEST OF SR 

429, AND COMPRISED OF APPROXIMATELY 5.306 ACRES; OWNED 

BY ORANGE COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS; 

18



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on April  18, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 6 
 

PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Mr. Hitt advised there have been no changes since the first reading. 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing.  

 

Dereck Ryan said he lives there and feels he needs to do his due diligence and asked what this 

was leading to.  

 

Mr. Hitt said there were various enclaves anywhere from real property to road right-of-ways. He 

said what they are endeavoring to do here is that there is a development to the south in the 

planning process that will end up utilizing King Street and part of Peterson. Another development 

on the west side going through the planning stages and in order to do anything on the property, we 

need to make sure we have control of this property being annexed in order to get the road paved 

or any improvements.  

 

No one wishing to speak, he closed the public hearing.  

 

MOTION by Commissioner Bankson, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to adopt 

Ordinance No. 2643. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and 

Commissioners Dean, Velazquez, Becker, and Bankson voting aye. 

 

CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 

Commissioner Becker said he has served for two years now and had the opportunity to serve with 

three people sitting next to him that has been quite a pleasure. He said it is heard to sit up there 

and face the scrutiny, but they all knew what they were getting into and all three of them have 

done this in a very meaningful manner to the City of Apopka. Commissioner Dean has served the 

community for 24 years and the community is indebted to him. Mayor Kilsheimer has led this city 

through a tremendous amount of change and his thumb print is on a number of things that will be 

a good foundation for his successor to build upon. Commissioner Velazquez has gone to every 

event from the city perspective and has been the face of our community. He said she supports and 

represents the Council very well at every event she attends. He wished them good luck with what 

comes next. 

 

Commissioner Bankson said it is much different sitting on the dais than sitting out in the audience 

and it does take something to commit to serve the city. He dislikes the term politician, but loves 

the term public servant and feels that is what all of their hearts are. He said Commissioner Dean 

has been here 24 years to fight for what he believes to be important for the city. He said 

Commissioner Velazquez has a photographic memory when she is out in the community, 

knowing the people in the community and she served from the heart. He said it has been a joy to 

serve with the Mayor and Commissioners Dean and Velazquez.  

 

Commissioner Dean thanked everyone for their support during his 24 years of service.  He said he 

was appreciative of all who came together in support of him and his family during the 

transitioning of his daughter. He said the kindness and comfort meant a lot to him and his family. 

He thanked the Mayor and Council for their service, saying they didn’t always agree eye to eye.  

He thanked Dr. Shackelford, Theresa Mott, Eric Hooper, Bill Arrowsmith, Michael Cooper, 

19



CITY OF APOPKA 
Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on April  18, 2018 at 7:00 p.m.  

Page 7 
 

Tenita and Bobby Reid, and Rod Love for their support. He said he had much respect for the Fire 

and Police Departments who have helped him in many ways. He said to the new Mayor and 

Commissioners, to do their best in representing the City of Apopka and its citizens. He thanked 

his wife Isadora, for her support.  

 

Commissioner Velazquez thanked everyone who has made this journey a wonderful experience 

for her. She said it has been a privilege and honor to have served our community. She thanked her 

husband Ed, who has supported her every step of the way. She said it was important to her to 

connect to the community and spoke of Christian Lamphere’s Eagle Scout project that she and Ed 

were able to be involved in and help with. She said it has been a pleasure serving with the Mayor 

and all of the Commissioners over these last four years. 

 

 

MAYOR’S REPORT 

Mayor Kilsheimer recognized Mayor-Elect Nelson and Commissioners Elect Smith and Nolan. 

He thanked his wife, Cheryl who was his number one supporter. He said it has been a privilege of 

his life to serve as Mayor of Apopka and he was given a rare opportunity to see and do things in 

Apopka that few people ever get to see. He stated he has had a front row seat to the slices of life 

in Apopka that make our community unique. He said one of the rules the Boy Scouts learn is to 

leave their campsite better than they found it and he feels we have done that in Apopka over the 

past four years. He pointed out the Apopka City Center deal is in place and construction is slated 

to begin later this year, the New Errol project now has zoning approval. He thanked Jim Hitt and 

City Attorney Shepard for protecting the city’s interest in moving this project forward. He said 

our Fire Department has maintained the ISO-1 rating and is poised to keep that rating with recent 

expansions and he thanked Chief Carnesale. The Police Department is now accredited and he 

thanked Chief McKinley. He spoke of the upgrade to our City’s wastewater plant underway and 

on track to open phase one in September, thanking Jay Davoll. He thanked Dr. Jackson and spoke 

of the successful summer youth employment program. He said as he closes out the last four years 

of his life, he would like to thank all 440 men and women who work hard every day at the City of 

Apopka. He thanked his assistant Merry Lovern and City Administrator Glenn Irby who has 

accomplished many things stepping into a tough role. He said next week he will return to private 

life and he looks forward to the next chapter in life that comes to him and his wife Cheryl. He 

wished Mayor Nelson and the next City Council luck saying he was grateful for the opportunities 

and challenges that came with this job stating he was better for it.  

 

ADJOURNMENT:  The meeting adjourned at 8:25 p.m. 

 

 

        __________________________ 

ATTEST:       Bryan Nelson, Mayor 

 

___________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

 

20



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: May 2, 2018 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             Administration 

       SPECIAL REPORTS     EXHIBITS:       

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: DESIGNATION OF ACCOUNT SIGNATORIES FOR FLORIDA COMMUNITY 

BANK 

 

REQUEST: UPDATE SIGNATORIES & REMOVE PREVIOUS MAYOR & 

COMMISSIONERS FROM ACCOUNTS AT FLORIDA COMMUNITY BANK 
  
SUMMARY:  
 

Upon the inauguration of the newly elected officials, Florida Community Bank requires an update to all 

bank account signatories.  This includes removing the signatures of Mayor Kilsheimer, Commissioner 

Dean & Commissioner Velazquez and adding Mayor Bryan Nelson, Commissioners Smith & Nolan. The 

banking authorization forms contain confidential information that the City Clerk will provide after the 

City Council meeting for signature.   

    
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:   
 

Vote to accept an update to all authorized signatories.   
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

21



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: May 2, 2018 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT:     SURVEYING AND MAPPING SERVICES 

 

REQUEST:  AUTHORIZE STAFF TO NEGOTIATE RATES & AWARD TWO SURVEYING 

AND MAPPING CONTINUING SERVICE CONTRACTS  
  
SUMMARY: 

 

On March 26, 2018, the City received qualifications, data, and expressions of interest for Surveying and 

Mapping Services from eleven firms. 

 

Staff has evaluated the qualifications submittals and the scoring results are as follows: 

  

 Southeastern Surveying 92.20  Wantman Group, Inc.  83.00 

 CPH, Inc.   91.60    DRMP    82.00 

 McKim & Creed  90.00  Cardno TBE   81.80 

 KPM Franklin   86.60  M.G. Vera & Associates 81.80 

 BESH Engineering  84.40  S&ME, Inc.   78.00 

 Keith & Schnars  84.00 

 

Staff requests approval to negotiate rates in accordance with F.S. 2873.0555, the Consultants Competitive 

Negotiations Act (CCNA) with Southeastern Surveying and CPH, Inc.  The contract will be effective for 

three (3) years and subject to renewal for two one-year extensions.  The services will be performed on an 

as-needed basis. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

N/A    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize staff to negotiate rates and award a surveying and mapping continuing services contract to 

Southeastern Surveying and CPH, Inc., for three (3) years, with the option to extend the contract for two 

additional one-year periods. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

22



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: May 2, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER: Final Development Plan/Plat  Final Development Plan 

    Plat 
  
SUBJECT:    VISTAS AT WATER’S EDGE, FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND 

PHASE 1 PLAT 

    

REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE VISTAS AT WATER’S EDGE 

FINAL DEVLOPMENT PLAN AND PHASE 1 PLAT 
  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER/APPLICANT: M/I Homes of Orlando, LLC  
   
PROJECT ENGINEER: Madden, Moorhead & Stokes, Inc. c/o David Stokes, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: South of Hooper Farms Road, west and north of Binion Road, and west of 

Harmon Road 
 
EXISTING USE:  Vacant land 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Mixed-Use (Maximum 15 du/ac)  
 
ZONING:   Mixed-EC 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: Single-Family Residential Subdivision (80 Lots; typical lots widths range 

from 60 feet to 75 feet;  lots range from a minimum of 7,500 square feet to 
24,000 square feet.) 

 
PROPOSED DENSITY:        1.90 du/ac 
 
TRACT SIZE:   75.24 +/- acres 
 
DEVELOPABLE AREA: 74.254 +/- acres 
 
OPEN SPACE:  21.52 acres 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 23



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 2, 2018 

VISTAS AT WATERS EDGE – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN, PLAT, PHASE 1  

PAGE # 2 

 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City)  Mixed Use Mixed-EC Hooper’s Landscape Nursery 

East (City) Mixed Use Mixed-EC Vacant land 

South (City) Institutional/Public Use R-3 Vacant Land 

West (City) Rural A-2 St Johns River Water Management District 

 
Project Use:  On May 17, 2017 the City Council approved a Final Development Plan and Plat for the Vistas at 
Water’s Edge, which proposed the development of 143 single family residential lots and 21.52 acres of active 
and passive recreation space.  The Final Development Plan and Plat detailed the subdivision being constructed 
in one phase with public streets. In 2017, M/I Homes bought the property and submitted a revised Final 
Development Plan and Plat detailing construction of a gated development in two phases with private streets that 
are proposed to be owned and maintained by a yet to be established homeowners association. Subdivision 
infrastructure is in the process of being constructed.  
 
M/I Homes is requesting approval of the Final Development Plan for both phases of the Vistas at Water’s Edge 
subdivision, and Plat for only Phase 1. For both phases, the Final Development Plan proposes all internal 
roadways as private instead of publicly owned and maintained. The Final Development Plan details a total of 
143 units in two phases. The Phase 1 plat is for 80 single-family residential lots and proposes all internal 
roadways as private instead of publicly owned and maintained. The plat for Phase 2 will be submitted in the 
future. Located within the Mixed-EC zoning district, the proposed subdivision provides a diversity of lot widths 
and lots sizes for both phases as follows: 
 

Lot Widths 
(Typical) 

Number Percentage 

60 93 66 
65 6 4 
70 32 22 
75 12 8 

 
The proposed minimum living area, in aggregate of 2,000 square feet, with no individual unit being less than 
1,600 square feet as set forth in Section 2.02.20.B.4 of the Land Development Code is proposed.  
 
The minimum setbacks applicable to this project are: 
 

Setback 
Min. 

Standard 
Front* 25’ 
Side 5’ 
Rear 20’ 
Corner 25’ 

*Front-entry garage must be setback 30 feet. 
 

Access:  Ingress/egress access points for the development will be via full access onto Binion Road that is gated, 
and a secondary gated emergency and pedestrian access point west of lot 55 connecting to Binion Road is 
provided. 
 
Stormwater: There are two (2) retention ponds designed to meet the City’s Land Development Code 
requirements. 
 
 
 24



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 2, 2018 

VISTAS AT WATERS EDGE – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN, PLAT, PHASE 1  

PAGE # 3 

 
Recreation:  Per Section 2.02.20.H.4a of the Land Development Code, developments made up of less than 300 
units shall be required to construct a minimum total of 2,000 square feet of facility or facilities for a Neighbor-
hood Activity Center. The developer is providing 21.52 acres of active and passive recreation space and is pro-
posing to construct a 1,720 square foot clubhouse with swimming pool, picnic area and yoga lawn within the 
active recreational space. Up to 25% of the Neighborhood Activity Center may be in open type facilities.  The 
developer agreed to place a 30-foot wide landscape buffer along Binion Road and to construct an 11-foot wide 
multi-use trail.  The trail will be dedicated to the City as part of the East Shore Trail System.  Furthermore, the 
Master Plan\PDP included passive parks (aka landscaped focal points) at strategic locations to break up long 
rows of homes and also provide views of Lake Apopka.  
 
Buffer/Tree Program:  The applicant has provided a thirty (30) foot wide landscape buffer along Binion Road 
with an eleven (11) foot wide multi-use trail.  The applicant has proposed to use a combination of decorative 
precast and wrought-iron style fence material Binion Road. 
 
The site has previously been cleared and infrastructure has been constructed. The following is a summary of the 
tree replacement program for this project that was previously agreed to prior to the May 2017 City Council 
approvals: 
 

Total inches on-site:        2592 
Total number of specimen trees: 29 
Total inches removed:  1725 
Total inches retained: 867 
Total inches replaced:  1725 
Total Inches (Post Development): 2592 

 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The developer has obtained a school concurrency mitigation agreement 
with Orange County Public Schools to address school impacts generated by this residential development. The 
schools zoned to receive students from this community are the following: Apopka Elementary School, Wolf 
Lake Middle School and Wekiva High School.  
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The County was notified at the time of the subdivision plan and plat 
for this property through the DRC agenda distribution.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
April 10, 2018 - Planning Commission, 5:30 p.m. 
May 2, 2018 - City Council, 1:30 p.m.  

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Vistas at Waters Edge, Final Development 
Plan and Phase 1 Plat subject to the final review by the City Surveyor and City Engineer prior to recording the 
plat. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on April 10, 2018, found the Phase 1 Plat for the Vistas at Water’s 
Edge consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code, and unanimously 
recommended approval of the Vistas at Water’s Edge, Phase 1 Plat subject to the findings of this staff report.     
 
City Council:  Approve the Vistas at Water’s Edge, Final Development Plan and Phase 1 Plat 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 

and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
  

25



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 2, 2018 

VISTAS AT WATERS EDGE – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN, PLAT, PHASE 1  

PAGE # 4 

 
Application:  Vistas at Waters Edge - Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan 
Owner Applicant: M/I Homes of Orlando, LLC    
Project Engineer: Madden, Moorhead, Stokes, Inc., c/o David A. Stokes, P.E. 
Parcel ID No.s:    19-21-28-0000-00-011, 19-21-28-0000-00-021 & 19-21-28-0000-022 
Total Acres:  75.24 +/- 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 
 

 
 
 
 
 

SUBJECT PROPERTIES 

26



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 2, 2018 

VISTAS AT WATERS EDGE – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN, PLAT, PHASE 1  

PAGE # 5 

 
 

AERIAL MAP 
 

 

27



S. BINION ROAD

H
A

R
M

O
N

 
R

D
.

S. BINION ROAD

S

.

 

B

I

N

I

O

N

 

R

O

A

D

49

47

25

4

9

6

6

CIVIL ENGINEERS

OV-1

15074
09/15/16
1"=100'

RJS
RJS
DAS

E
Q
U
I
T
Y
 
W
A
T
E
R
S
 
E
D
G
E
,
 
L
L
C

25

4

6

9

47

49

110

310

427

428

530

618

742

618
310

428

427 310

110

742

530 310

28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: May 2, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 

X OTHER:  Ordinance  Vicinity Map 

    Future Land Use Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 

    Existing Uses 

    Ordinance No. 2617 
  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2617 – COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE 

LAND USE AMENDMENT – LAURA R. MURPHY (MURPHY EQUESTRIAN 

CENTER) 

    

REQUEST:  ORDINANCE NO. 2617 – SECOND READING - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – 

LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – LAURA R. MURPHY 

(MURPHY EQUESTRIAN CENTER) FROM AGRICULTURE (1 DU/5 AC) TO 

RESIDENTIAL LOW SUBURBAN (0-3.5 DU/AC) 
  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER:   Laura R. Murphy  
 
APPLICANT:   AVEX Homes, c/o Eric Wills 
 
LOCATION: 359 W. Lester Road 
 
PARCEL ID #: 28-20-28-0000-00-060 
 
EXISTING USE:  Equestrian Center 
 
DEVELOPMENT  
POTENTIAL:   Single Family Homes (est. 52 residential units) 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  Agriculture  
 
PROPOSED ZONING: R-1 (Single Family Residential)   
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT UNDER EXISTING: 1 D/U 
FLUM\ZONING:  PROPOSED: 69 Single Family Homes  
 
TRACT SIZE:   +/- 19.94 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 38



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 2, 2018 

EQUESTRIAN CENTER-LARGE SCALE FUTURE LAND USE 

PAGE 2 
 
 ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The applicant intends to use the subject properties for a residential community 
with detached, single-family homes. Presently the subject property is assigned an Agriculture future land use 
designation and Agriculture zoning.  
  
The proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment is being requested by the owner/applicant.  Pursuant to 
Florida law, properties ten acres or more are required to undergo review by State planning agencies. 
 
A request to assign a Future Land Use Designation of Residential Low Suburban is as compatible or more 
compatible with the character of the existing land use in the vicinity. While the adjacent uses are agriculture-
oriented, including the Avian Reconditioning Center to the east, subdivisions and vacant properties in all four 
cardinal directions have a future land use designation of Residential Low Suburban.  

 
In conjunction with state requirements, staff has analyzed the proposed amendment and determined that adequate 
public facilities exist to support this land use change (see attached Land Use Report).  Based on the findings of 
the Land Use report, the proposed FLUM amendment is compatible with the surrounding and nearby land uses 
and the character of the general area. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 
with the Residential Low Suburban Future Land Use Designation. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  School capacity determination must be completed with Orange County 
Public Schools prior to the adoption hearing for this Future Land Use Amendment application. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify before any public hearing or 
advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on November 27, 2017. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
January 9, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
January 17, 2018 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading & Transmittal 
May 2, 2018 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 2nd Reading & Adoption 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
December 22, 2017 – ¼ Page w/Map Ordinance Heading Ad (Apopka Chief, Letters, Property Posting) 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
and compatible with the character of the surrounding area, and recommends transmittal of the change in Future 
Land Use from Agriculture to Residential Low Suburban Density for the property owned by Laura Murphy.  
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on January 9, 2018, found the Residential Low Suburban Future 
Land Use Designation consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and character of the surrounding area; and 
unanimously recommended a change in Future Land Use Designation to Residential Low Suburban for the 
property owned by Laura Murphy.  
 

The City Council, at its meeting on January 17, 2018, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2617 

and authorized transmittal to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity. With no comments or 

objections received by State agencies or Orange County, the case moves to a second hearing. 
 
Recommended Motion: Adopt Ordinance 2617  
 
Note: This item is considered Legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into 
and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

39



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 2, 2018 

EQUESTRIAN CENTER-LARGE SCALE FUTURE LAND USE 

PAGE 3 
 

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) “County” Low Density Residential “County” A-1 Woodlands 

East (City) “City” Agriculture “City”AG Bird Reconditioning Center 

South (City and 

County) 

“City” Residential Low & “County” 

Low Medium Density Residential 

“City” R-2 & 

“County” A-2 

Single Family Homes 

West (County) “County” Low Density Residential “County” A-1 Greenhouse 

 

II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 

The applicant intends to develop the property as a single family home community.  Predominant existing 

land uses and assigned zoning in the abutting and surrounding area are institutional, single family residential 

and agricultural. 

 

North: Abutting the subject property to the north are woodlands. Ponkan Road is an estimated 0.7 miles 

north. 

 

West: West of the subject property are horticulture sites. Across the street from Vick Road are the Errol 

Estates and Spring Ridge subdivisions.  

 

East: To the east of the property is the Avian Reconditioning Center. Rock Springs Road is an estimated 

0.6 miles east. 

 

South:  Single family homes on large lots are south-adjacent to the subject property. The Rock Springs 

subdivision is southwest and the Rock Springs/Palm Isle Mobile Home Park is southwest.  

 

The proposed future land use designation of Residential Low Suburban is consistent with the surrounding 

future land use designations and anticipated future development in the surrounding area. At the intersection 

of Rock Springs Road and Lester Road, a single family residential development (Raulerson/Pumphrey’s 

Properties) is being reviewed by the City Boards. Staff supports the proposed future land use designation. 
 

 Other Information:  
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement 
on September 25, 2017.   
 
 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act:   The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the 
adopted Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  While located within the Wekiva River Basin 
Study Area, the subject property is not located within the Protection Area. The proposed amendment is 
consistent with the adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) 
amendment has been reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater 
resources.  The City of Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater 
run-off through the following policies: 40



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 2, 2018 

EQUESTRIAN CENTER-LARGE SCALE FUTURE LAND USE 

PAGE 4 
 

 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there is a potential karst feature on this property. 
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The property has access to Lester Road to the south. 
Currently, the property is used as an equestrian center with multiple stables and fenced areas. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future 
land use designation for the subject site is Residential Low Suburban (0 – 3.5 du/ac) and currently has a 
designation of Agriculture.   A change to a residential land use of Residential Low Suburban will generate 
an estimated population increase up to 183 persons. Based on the housing element of the City's 
Comprehensive Plan, this amendment will increase the City’s future population but a housing supply is 
needed to meet the growing population. 
 
CALCULATIONS: 
ADOPTED: Agriculture (1 du/ 5 ac)   
EXISTING: Agriculture – (1 du/ 5 ac x 19.94 ac = max 3 units x 2.659 = 7 persons) 
PROPOSED: Residential Low Suburban:   3.5 du/ac x 19.94 ac = max 69 units x 2.659 = 183 persons 
Net Increase:  + 183 persons 
 
 Housing Needs: This amendment will not negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 
Comprehensive Plan. The amendment will allow for additional housing to accommodate anticipated 
population growth projected by the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: Per policy 4.1 of the 
Conservation Element, a habitat study is required for developments ten (10) acres or more in size.  This site 
is greater than ten acres.  A habitat study will be required at the time of a development plan application. 
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to 
Chapter 3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. Access to the site occurs from W. Lester 
Road.   
 
 Potable Water, Reclaimed Water & Sanitary Sewer Analysis: The subject property is located within 
the City of Apopka service area for potable water, reclaimed water and sanitary service.    
Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None; 81 GPD/Capita ; 81 GPD 
/ Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  588  GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  13,524  GPD 
   

4. Capacity available:  Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation: 81  GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
41



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 2, 2018 

EQUESTRIAN CENTER-LARGE SCALE FUTURE LAND USE 

PAGE 5 
 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: 
None 

 
 Potable Water Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard: None; 177 GPD/Capita ; 177 
GPD / Capita 

  
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka 
  

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:    630  GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:  14,490  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177  GPD / Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177  GPD / Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 
None 

 
8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area:  Yes 

 
 Solid Waste 
 

1. Facilities serving the site:  City of Apopka 
 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of 
Apopka 

 
3. Projected LOS under existing designation:  28  lbs / day 

 
4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  732  lbs / day 

 
5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: 

None  
 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
 
 Infrastructure Information 
 
 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 
 
 Permitting agency: St. John’s River Water Management District 
 
 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  9.353  MGD 
 
 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696  MGD 
 
 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 42



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 2, 2018 

EQUESTRIAN CENTER-LARGE SCALE FUTURE LAND USE 

PAGE 6 
 
 
 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Drainage Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site:   None 
 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm  
 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm 
 

4. Improvement/expansion: On site retention / detention ponds 
 
 Recreation 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System ;  3 acre / 1000 capita 
 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.021  acres 
 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  0.549  acres 
 
Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed amendment: None  
 
This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
  

43



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 2, 2018 

EQUESTRIAN CENTER-LARGE SCALE FUTURE LAND USE 

PAGE 7 
 

 
 

Laura Murphy, Property Owner 

+/- 19.94 
Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From: Agriculture (1 D/U per 5 ac) 
To: Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du/ac)  

Parcel ID # 28-20-28-0000-00-060:  
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 44



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 2, 2018 

EQUESTRIAN CENTER-LARGE SCALE FUTURE LAND USE 

PAGE 8 
 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

45



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 2, 2018 

EQUESTRIAN CENTER-LARGE SCALE FUTURE LAND USE 

PAGE 9 
 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 

  

46



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 2, 2018 

EQUESTRIAN CENTER-LARGE SCALE FUTURE LAND USE 

PAGE 10 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES AND EXISTING USES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

47



ORDINANCE 2617 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING THE 

FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM AGRICULTURE TO 

RESIDENTIAL LOW SUBURBAN (0-3.5 DU/AC) FOR CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED AT 359 WEST LESTER ROAD, 

OWNED BY LAURA R. MURPHY; COMPRISING 19.94 ACRES, MORE 

OR LESS, PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, on October 2, 1991 adopted 

Ordinance No. 653 which adopted the Comprehensive Plan for the City of Apopka; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has subsequently amended the Comprehensive Plan for 

the City of Apopka, most recently through Ordinance No. 2606, adopted December 20, 2017; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s Local Planning Agency and the City Council have 

conducted the prerequisite advertised public hearings, as per Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, relative 

to the transmittal and adoption of this ordinance and the requirements for amendment to the 

Comprehensive Plan.   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows:  

 

 SECTION I: The City of Apopka hereby amends the Future Land Use Element of the 

adopted Comprehensive Plan as follows:   

 

 The Future Land Use Map is hereby amended and replaced in its entirety by Exhibit “A” 

of this Ordinance, and incorporated herein by reference.  

 

 SECTION II: This Ordinance shall become effective following adoption and upon issuance 

by the Department of Community Affairs or the Administration Commission, as may be applicable, 

a final order finding the amendment to be in compliance in accordance with Chapter 163.3184.  

 

 SECTION III: If any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves 

to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, 

force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this ordinance.  

 

 SECTION IV:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

 

 SECTION V: This Ordinance shall become effective upon issuance of a final order by the 

Florida Department of Economic Opportunity finding the plan amendment in compliance in 

accordance with s.163.3184 (2)(a), Florida Statute. 

48



ORDINANCE NO. 2617 

PAGE 2 

 

 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 

2nd day of May, 2018. 

 

 

READ FIRST TIME: January 17, 2018 

  

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED: 

 

May 2, 2018 

 

 

 

_______________________________________                                                                       

       Bryan Nelson, Mayor                            

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: December 29, 2017; April 20, 2018 

  

49



EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Ordinance No. 2617 
Laura R. Murphy, Property Owner 

19.94 +/- Acres 
Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From:  Agriculture (1 du\ 5 ac max) 
To: “Residential Low Suburban (0 – 3.5 du/ac)  

Parcel ID #s:  28-20-28-0000-00-060 

 

50



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: May 2, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER: Ordinance    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Ordinance 2644 

    Ex. A – PUD Master Plan 
  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2644 - AMENDMENT TO THE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

MASTER PLAN FOR 1305 WEST ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL 

    

REQUEST:  FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2644 - AMENDMENT TO ORDINANCE 

2292, WHICH AMENDS THE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD) MASTER 

PLAN FOR 1305 WEST ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL; AND HOLD OVER FOR 

SECOND READING AND ADOPTION. 
  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER:   Spirit SPE Portfolio CA C-Stores, LLC 
 
APPLICANT:   Gray Robinson, P.A. 
 
ENGINEER:   Tannath Design, Inc.  
 
LOCATION: 1305 West Orange Blossom Trail 

(North of U.S. HWY 441 (a.k.a. Orange Blossom Trail) and East of Errol Parkway) 
 
EXISTING USE:  Convenience Store w/ Fueling Stations 
 
LAND USE:   Commercial  
 
ZONING:   PUD/C-2   
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: Existing gas station and gasoline sales (Lot 1), Future General Business uses (Lot 2) 
 
PROPOSED LOTS:  Lot 1: 2.045 +/- Acres 
    Lot 2: 0.895 +/- Acres 
 
TOTAL ACRES:  2.94 +/- Acres 
 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 

Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

  

51



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 2, 2018 

1305 W ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL PUD MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT 

PAGE 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Residential Medium (0-10du/ac) R-2 Residential Subdivision 

East (City) Commercial PUD Retail Shopping Center (Victoria Plaza) 

South (City) Commercial C-2 Commercial Retail (Verizon Wireless) 

West (County) Commercial C-2 Commercial Retail 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The subject property is located at 1305 West Orange Blossom Trail and 
is the site of a gas station and associated convenience store. According to Orange County Property Appraiser 
records, the gas station was constructed in 1997. Originally a RaceTrac gas station was located on the 
property. In 2015 the property was sold, and is now the site of a Marathon gas station with an associated 
convenience store.  
 
On March 6, 2013, the City Council adopted Ordinance 2292, which rezoned the property from C-1 to PUD. 
The C-1 zoning district only permits gasoline sales through a Special Exception and is limited to four 
multiple station pumps and two single station pumps. The RaceTrac gas station had over ten fueling stations, 
and the site was considered a legal, non-conforming use. Ordinance 2292 allows PO/I, CN, C-1, and 
automotive fuel sales, which is a C-2 district permissible use as permitted uses, and was requested by the 
former property owner to remove the legal nonconforming status from the property.  Exhibit “A” of 
Ordinance 2292 contains a PUD Master Plan for the RaceTrac gas station and associated convenience store.  
 
The applicant is requesting an amendment to Ordinance 2292 to amend the PUD Master Plan to create two 
separate lots. Lot 1 identifies the existing Marathon (formerly known as RaceTrac) gas station consisting 
of a 5,928 square foot convenience store with ten fueling stations.  Lot 2 is proposed to remain vacant, but 
is to be marketed for up to 7,200 square feet of general business uses with 24 parking spaces. The applicant 
is requesting the PUD Master Plan amendment to split the property and sell Lot 2 in the future.  
 
DEVIATIONS:  The applicant is requesting three deviations to the City’s required development standards.  
For a PUD master plan, a deviation from the City’s Land Development Code does not represent a variance 
but a development standard or zoning condition unique to and approved as part of the Planned Unit 
Development zoning. PUD’s are required to satisfy the requirements of the Land Development Code unless 
the City Council finds that, based on substantial evidence, a proposed alternative development guideline is 
adequate to protect to the public health safety, and welfare.  Any deviations must be consistent with the 
policies of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

1. LDC 2.02.13.G.3 - areas adjacent to nonresidential uses or districts are required to provide a 
minimum five-foot landscaped bufferyard. The applicant is requesting a joint 5-foot wide landscape 
buffer between Lot 1 and Lot 2 in lieu of the required five foot wide landscape buffer on each parcel.   

 
Justification: Both sites consist of commercial uses and there will be substantial landscaping within 
the 5-foot buffer, including 7 Crape Myrtles with 2-inch minimum Caliper 8-foot minimum height, 
a Sweet Viburnum Hedge 24-inch minimum height 36-inches on center and Parsons Juniper 24-
inches on center.  The panhandle portion of Lot 1 will remain as open space. The pan handle portionn 
of the property shall be used for open space or stormwater retention only. 
 

2. LDC 6.05.00.D.6.A - requires the minimum requirements for maintenance berms are ten feet around 
the perimeter of the stormwater pond.  The applicant is requesting a reduction in width of the 
maintenance berm of 10 feet with fencing to 5-feet for Lot 2. 
 

52



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 2, 2018 

1305 W ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL PUD MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT 

PAGE 3 

 

Justification:  The proposed concrete wall is setback 10-feet from the property line, due to an 
existing easement.  An additional 10-foot berm on the site side of the wall would take up additional 
room for recharge of the stormwater ponds, necessary to meet the goals and objectives of the City 
of Apopka Comprehensive Plan.  The proposed pond is dry and will allow for maintenance and 
upkeep from inside the pond.  

 
3. Development Design Guidelines Section 4.4, Off-street parking - The applicant is requesting a 

reduction of the requirement of no more than 50% of the required parking spaces in front of the 
proposed building on Lot 2.    

 
Justification:  Section 4.4 of the Development Design Guidelines does not permit parking areas to 
be located in the building setback area abutting a residential area. Lot 2 abuts an existing single-
family residential subdivision. In addition, a wider landscape island is proposed in front of the 
proposed building on Lot 2, which increases the amount of open space on site. The reduction also 
allows for a cross access drive aisle in the future to the Victoria Plaza. 

 
Comprehensive Plan Compliance:  The proposed amendment to Ordinance 2292 is consistent with the City’s 
Commercial Future Land Use category. Development plans shall not exceed the intensity allowed under the 
adopted Commercial Future Land Use designation. 
 
Land Use Compatibility:  The Property is located on a major arterial road (West Orange Blossom Trail).The 
proposed amendment to Ordinance 2292 will not create any land use or traffic compatibility issues with adjacent 
uses. Development of the site must occur consistent with standards set forth in the Land Development Code and 
Development Design Guidelines unless otherwise approved within the PUD master plan. 
 
Buffer Yard Requirements:  Areas adjacent to all road right of ways shall provide a minimum ten foot 
landscape bufferyard.  Areas adjacent to residential uses or districts shall provide a six foot high masonry 
wall within a ten-foot landscape buffer. The PUD Master Plan proposes extending an existing six foot high 
masonry wall located behind the Marathon gas station (Lot 1) along the rear of the proposed Lot 2 as it 
abuts residential development.  
 
Proposed PUD Recommendations: The PUD recommendations are that the zoning classification of the 
following described property be designated as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka 
Land Development Code, and with the following Master Plan provisions: 
 
Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property be designated as Planned Unit 
Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with the following Master 
Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 
 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district are PO/I, CN, C-1, and automotive fuel sales, which is 
C-2 district permissible use. 

 
B. All development standards set forth in the Land Development Code and Development Design 

Guidelines shall apply to development within the PUD unless as otherwise allowed and defined as 
follows: 

 
1. Signage shall comply with the City’s sign codes unless otherwise approved through a master 

sign plan 
 
2.   Illumination plan shall be provided with the preliminary or final development plan. 
 
3.  No outside activities including but not limited to, outside storage of parts, vending machines, 

supplies, merchandise or materials. 
53



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 2, 2018 

1305 W ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL PUD MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT 

PAGE 4 

 

 
C. The C-1 zoning standards shall apply to the development of the subject property unless otherwise 

established herein this ordinance. 
 
D.  A cross access easement shall be illustrated in the  preliminary and final development plans and the 

plat that connect the U.S. 441 entrance to the eastern boundary of the project, allowing for future 
connection to the Victoria Plaza. 

 
E.  The parcel split shall occur through a plat at the time of the final development plan application. 
 
F.  No driveway cut will be allowed onto Old Dixie Highway. The northern panhandle portion of the 

Property shall only be used as open space or stormwater retention. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
Planning Commission – April 10, 2018, 5:30 p.m. 
City Council – May 2, 2018, 1:30 p.m. – First Reading 
City Council – May 16, 2018, 7:00 p.m. – Second Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 

March 28, 2018 – Public Notice; Letter, Poster 

March 30, 2018 – Public Notice (Apopka Chief)  

 
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval of the amendment to Ordinance 2292, 
for the property owned by Spirit SPE Portfolio CA C-Stores, LLC, located at 1301 West Orange Blossom 
Trail, subject to PUD Recommendations and the information and findings in the staff report. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on April 10, 2018, found the proposed amendment to be 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and unanimously recommended 

approval of the amendment to Ordinance 2292. 

 
City Council:  Accept the First Reading of Ordinance 2644 and Hold it Over for Second Reading and 

Adoption on May 16, 2018 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

54



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 2, 2018 

1305 W ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL PUD MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT 

PAGE 5 

 

Application:  PUD Master Plan Amendment   

Applicant:  Gray Robinson, P.A.  

Owner:  Spirit SPE Portfolio CA C-Stores, LLC 

Engineer:  Tannath Design, Inc.  

Parcel ID Nos.:   05-21-28-0000-00-039 

Total Acres:  2.94 +/- 

 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 
 

 

Subject Property 

55



CITY COUNCIL – MAY 2, 2018 

1305 W ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL PUD MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT 

PAGE 6 

 

 
Application:  PUD Master Plan Amendment   

Applicant:  Gray Robinson, P.A.  

Owner:  Spirit SPE Portfolio CA C-Stores, LLC 

Engineer:  Tannath Design, Inc.  

Parcel ID Nos.:   05-21-28-0000-00-039 

Total Acres:  2.94 +/- 

 

ADJACENT ZONING MAP 

 

 

56



ORDINANCE NO. 2644 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
ORDINANCE 2292, WHICH AMENDS THE ADOPTED “RACETRAC 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD) MASTER PLAN” FOR 
CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1305 WEST ORANGE 
BLOSSOM TRAIL, COMPRISING 2.94 ACRES MORE OR LESS; OWNED 
BY SPIRIT SPE PORTFOLIO CA C-STORES, LLC; PROVIDING FOR 
DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 WHEREAS, to manage growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest of 
the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the 
City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Gray Robinson, P.A. has requested an amendment to Ordinance 2292, 
adopted on March 6, 2013 to amend the adopted RaceTrac Planned Unit Development (PUD) 
Master Plan; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed amendment to Ordinance 2292 has been found to be consistent 
with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property be designated 
as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with 
the following development standards and provisions and amendments to Ordinance 2292, and 
subject to the following zoning provisions: 
 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district are PO/I, CN, C-1, and automotive fuel sales, 
which is C-2 district permissible use. 

 
B.  Development of the property shall occur consistent with the Master Site Plan set forth in 

Exhibit “A”.  Where any development standard conflicts between the Master Site Plan and 
the Land Development Code, the Master Site Plan shall preside.  Any proposed revision to 
the Master Site Plan shall be evaluated and processed pursuant to Section 2.02.18.N. 
(Master plan revision), LDC 

 
C. All development standards set forth in the Land Development Code and Development 

Design Guidelines shall apply to development within the PUD unless as otherwise allowed 
and defined as follows: 

 
1. Signage shall comply with the City’s sign codes unless otherwise approved through a 

master sign plan 
 
2.   Illumination plan shall be provided with the preliminary or final development plan. 
 
3.  No outside activities including but not limited to, outside storage of parts, vending 

machines, supplies, merchandise or materials. 
 

D. The C-1 zoning standards shall apply to the development of the subject property unless 
otherwise established herein this ordinance. 

57



ORDINANCE NO. 2644 

PAGE 2 
 

 

E. A cross access easement shall be illustrated in the  preliminary and final development plans 
and the plat that connect the U.S. 441 entrance to the eastern boundary of the project, 
allowing for future connection to the Victoria Plaza. 

 
F. The parcel split shall occur through a plat at the time of the final development plan 

application. 
 
G.  No driveway cut will be allowed onto Old Dixie Highway. The northern panhandle portion 

of the Property shall only be used as open space or stormwater retention. 
 
H.  If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by the 

City within three years after approval of these Master Plan provisions, the approval of the 
Master Site Plan\PDP provisions will expire.   At such time, the City Council may: 
 

1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Final 
Development Plan; 

 
2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal 

of new Master Site Plan provisions and any conditions of approval; or 
 
3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 
Section II.  That the zoning classification of the following described Property, being 

situated in the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby PUD as defined in the Apopka Land 
Development Code: 
 
 Legal Description: 
 

A parcel of land located in the Southeast ¼ of Section 5, Township 21 South, Range 
28 East, more particularly described as follows: 
 
Commence at the Northwest corner of the Southwest ¼ of the Southeast ¼ of said 
Section 5; thence South 00º00’00” East, 55.74 feet to the south right-of-way of 
State Road No. 424, said point being the Point of Beginning and said point also 
being the Northeast corner of Lot 6, Pine Tree Park, as Recorded in Plat Book 11, 
Page 44 of the Public Records of Orange County, Florida; thence South 63º11’55” 
East, 67.22 feet along said southerly right-of-way of State Road No. 424 to the 
Northwest corner of Errol Place, as recorded in Plat Book 13, Page 10 of the Public 
Records of Orange County, Florida; thence South 00º00’00” East, 373.99 feet along 
the west line of said Errol Place to the southwesterly corner of said Errol Place; 
thence South 66º03’50” East, 507.32 feet along the southerly line of said Errol 
Place to the southeasterly corner of said Errol Place; thence South 23º56’10” West, 
200.00 feet to the northerly right-of-way of U.S. Highway No. 441 (State Road No. 
500); thence north 66º03’50” West, 484.19 feet to the west line of the Southeast ¼ 
of said Section 5; thence north 00º00’00” East, 596.49 feet along the 
aforementioned west line to the Point of Beginning. 
 
Parcel ID No.:  05-21-28-0000-00-039 
Containing 2.94 +/- Acres 

 
 Section III.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of 
the City of Apopka, Florida. 

58



ORDINANCE NO. 2644 

PAGE 3 
 

 

 Section IV.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 
hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, to include said designation. 
 
 Section V. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves 
to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, 
force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 
 
 Section VI.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed.   
 
 Section VII.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of adoption. 
 
 

READ FIRST TIME:  May 2, 2018 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
 

                       
 

        
_____________________________________ 

       Bryan Nelson, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Cliff Shepard, City Attorney 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED:  March 30, 2018 

59



60



61



62



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: May 2, 2019 

  X  PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       Resolution 2018-07,  

  X   OTHER:                  Agreement 
  

 

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION NO. 2018-07 AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN THE 

RAILROAD REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF 

GRADE CROSSINGS AND TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES OF SOUTH 

HIGHLAND AVENUE 

 

REQUEST: ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 2018-07 
  
SUMMARY: 

 

Resolution No. 2018-07 authorizing the Mayor to sign the agreement with the State of Florida 

Department of Transportation and the Florida Central Railroad Company, Inc. for the South Highland 

Avenue Railroad Reimbursement Agreement for grade crossing and traffic control devices construction 

and maintenance. 

 

The full cost of the installation of the crossing upgrade will be paid by the State of Florida Department of 

Transportation.  Per the agreement, the City will pay for fifty percent (50%) of the annual maintenance 

cost equaling $3,600 per year. 

 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Fund 101 – Six Cents Gas Tax    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Adopt Resolution No. 2018-07 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-07 

 

A RESOLUTION OF CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN A RAILROAD 

REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT FOR THE 

CONSTRUCTION OF RAILROAD GRADE CROSSINGS, 

INSTALLATION OF TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES 

RAILROAD GRAD CROSSINGS, AND FUTURE 

MAINTENANCE AND ADJUSTMENT OF SAID 

CROSSINGS AND DEVICES; PROVIDING FOR THE 

EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

WHEREAS, the State of Florida Department of Transportation is constructing, 

reconstructing or otherwise changing a portion of the Public Road System, on South Highland 

Avenue, which shall call for the installation and maintenance of railroad grade crossing traffic 

control devices for railroad grade crossing over or near said highway. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

APOPKA, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION I.   That the City of Apopka enter into a RAILROAD REIMBURSEMENT 

AGREEMENT with the State of Florida Department of Transportation and the Florida Central 

Railroad Company, Inc. for the installation and maintenance of certain grade crossings and traffic 

control devices for grade crossings designated as Financial Project ID 44277515701, on South 

Highland Avenue which crosses the right-of-way and tracks of the Company’s milepost number 

ST 802.41, at Railroad Crossing No. 625273-X located in Apopka, Florida; and 

SECTION II.  That the City of Apopka assume its share of the costs for future maintenance and 

adjustment of said grade crossing traffic control devices as designated in the RAILROAD 

REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT; and 

SECTION III.  The Mayor is hereby authorized to enter into such agreement with the State of 

Florida Department of Transportation and the Florida Central Railroad Company, Inc., as herein 

described. 

 

SECTION IV.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon approval and adoption. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 

2nd day of May, 2018. 

 

 

        CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA 

 

 

 

______________________________

Bryan Nelson, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

Linda F. Goff, City Clerk 

 

82


	Top
	1. 05-02-18 - CC - APPROVAL OF MINUTES 4/4/18 (placeholder)
	04-04-18.docx

	2. 05-02-18 - CC - APPROVAL OF MINUTES 4/18/18 (placeholder)
	04-18-18.docx

	1. 05-02-18 - CC - Consent - Updating Bank Signatures
	Glenn - Staff Report Signature Bank FBC 05.02.18.docx

	2. 05-02-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - Public Services - Surveying and Mapping Services
	PS - Surveying and Mapping Services Staff Report.docx

	1. 05-02-18 - CC - Business - Final Development Plan/Plat - Vistas at Waters Edge
	1 Vistas at Waters Edge FDP Plat - CC 050218.pdf
	2 Final Development Plan.pdf
	3 Phase 1 plat.pdf

	1. 05-02-18 - CC - Ordinance - Ord. #2617 - 2nd Rd - Comp Plan Large Scale FLUM - Laura Murphy
	1 Equestrian Center FLU 2nd Rd. 5-2-2018.pdf
	2 Ord 2617 Equestrian CenterS FLUM.pdf

	2. 05-02-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2644 - 1st Rd - Change of Zoning - 1305 W Orange Blossom Trail
	1 1305 W OBT CC 05 02 18.pdf
	2  Ordinance 2644.pdf
	3 Exhibit A 1305 W OBT PUD Master Plan 04 10 18.pdf

	3. 05-02-18 - CC - Resolution 2018-07 - Public Services - Resolution No. 2018-07
	PS - DOT Railroad Crossing Resolution Staff Report.docx
	DOT Railroad Reimbursement Agreement.pdf
	DOT Railroad Crossing Resolution.docx

	Bottom

